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Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group
and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2022,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The principal activities and other information
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 11 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities of the Group and of the
Company during the financial year.

RESULTS

Group Company
RM RM
Profit for the financial year, net of tax 2,163,832 662,901

Attributable to;
- Owners of the Company 2,173,133 662,901
- Non-controlling interest (9,201) -
2,163,932 662,901

DIVIDENDS

On 23 August 2022, the Directors declared and approved an interim single-tier dividend of RM0.012
per ordinary share for the financial year ending 30 June 2023 amounted to RM1,296,000, which was
paid by the Company on 9 September 2022,

The Directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the current financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than
those disclosed in the financial statements.

ISSUANCE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the financial year, the Company has increased its issued and paid-up capital by way of the
following for working capital purposes:

{a) allotment of 12,000,000 new ordinary shares (“Public Issue”} on 19 July 2021 at RM0.21 per
share totalling RM2,520,000 in conjunction with the Company’s Initial Public Offering on the
LEAP Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad; and

{b)  issuance of 36,000,000 new ordinary shares on 4 February 2022 at RM0.25 per share totalling
RM9,000,000 pursuant to a private placement.

The new ordinary shares issued during the financial year rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
issued ordinary shares of the Company.

There were no debentures issued during the financial year,
1



Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial
year,

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors in office during the financial year and at this report are:

Chan Eng Lim ~

Gan Hui Ping *

Chan Choong Wai "

Wan Zamri Bin Wan Zain (Appointed on 16 March 2022)
Fazrin Azwar Bin Md. Nor (Appointed on 16 March 2022)

* Being a Director of one or more subsidiaries

DIRECTOR OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Section 253(2) of the Companies Act 2016 ("Act"), the Director who served in the
subsidiaries (excluding Directors who are also Directors of the Company) in office since the date of
incorporation to the date of this report is as follows:

Johan Bachtiar T. Permana

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, the interest of Directors in office at the end of the
financial year in shares or debentures of the Company and its related corporations during the financial
year were as follows:

Number of Ordinary Shares

At At
01.07.2021 Acquired Sold 30.06.2022
Unit Unit Unit Unit
Name of Directors:
Ordinary shares in the Company
Direct interest:
- Chan Eng Lim 1 - - 1
- Gan Hui Ping 8,748,635 - - 8,748,635
Name of Directors:
Ordinary shares in the ulfimafe holding
company
Deemed interest:
- Chan Choong Wai * 11,297,064 - - 11,297,064
- Chan Eng Lim * 22,594,126 - - 22,594,126
- Gan Hui Ping * 11,297,064 - - 11,297,084

* Deemed interest by virtue of shares held in Watergate Solidwood Sdn. Bhd. pursuant to Section
8(4) of the Act.

The other Directors in office at the end of the financial year had no interest in the shares and warrants
of the Group and the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

The amounts of fees and other benefits paid to or receivable by the Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the estimated money value of any other benefits received or receivable by them
otherwise than in cash from the Company and its subsidiaries for their services to the Company and its
subsidiaries were as follows:

Company Subsidiaries

RM RM
Fees 6,500 -
Salaries, bonus and other emoluments 748,000 141,175
Contributions to defined contribution plan 112,125 18,000
Social security contributions 1,539 308
Total remuneration 868,164 159,483

Since the end of the previous financial period, no Director of the Company has received nor become
entitled to receive any benefit (other than Directors’ emoluments received or due and receivable as
disclosed in the financial statements or the fixed salary of a fufl-time employee of the Company) by
reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Directar or with a firm of
which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial
interest, except as disclosed in Note 27{h) to the financial statements.

There were no arrangements during or at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling
Directors of the Company to acguire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a)  Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group
and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

{i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and
the making of provision for doubtiul debts and satisfied themselves that there were no
known bad debts and that no provision for doubtful debts was necessary; and

(i)  to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course
of business including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of
the Company have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to
realise.

(b}  Atthe date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(i} which would necessitate the writing off of bad debts or the provision for doubtful debts;

(i)  which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company misleading;

(iify  which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets
or liabilittes of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or

(iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements which would render any
amount stated in the financial statements misleading.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (cont'd)
(cy At the date of this report, there does not exist:

{i) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of
the financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(i)  any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year.

(d}y  Inthe opinion of the Directors:

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable,
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year, which will or may affect
the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due;

(i} the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year have
not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature; and

(i)  noitem, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between
the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the
results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this
report is made.

(e) The total amount paid to or receivable by the auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries as
remuneration for their services for the financial year are as set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

{fy There was no amount paid o or receivable by any third party in respect of the services provided to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by any Director of the Company.

(g) There was no indemnity given to or insurance effected for any Director, officer or auditor of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Watergate Solidwood Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia as the ultimate

holding company of the Company.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs. Moore Stephens Associates PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in
office.

Approved and signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 18
Jctober 2022.

GAN HUI PING
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DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

We, the undersigned, being two of the Directors of the Company, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the
Directors, the accompanying financial statements as set out on pages 10 to 68 are drawn up in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2022 and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the financial year then ended.

pproved and signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 18
OE:\tob 2022.

AN ENG LIM GAN HUIPI

STATUTORY DECLARATION
Pursuant to Section 251(1) of the Companies Act 2016

|, CHAN ENG LIM, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of the Company,
do solemnly and sincerely declare that that the financial statements as set out on pages 10 to 68 are to the
best of my knowledge and belief, correct and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the
same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the \
abovenamed

at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory

on 18 October 2022

AN ENG LIM

NO 6, JALAH D¢ Lo LA, BUKIT DAMANSARA
50490 KUALA LUMPUR



u MOORE Moore Stephens Associates PLT
201304000972 (LLPOOO0963-LCA)
Chartered Accountants [aroozogs)
Unit 3.3A, 3rd Floor, Surian Tower
No. 1 Jalan PJU 7/3. Mutiara Damansara
47810 Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia

T +603 7728 1800 (General) ; 7724 1033 (Assurance)
F +603 7728 9800 (General) : 7733 1033 (Assurance)

www.moore.com.my

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD

Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of DynaFront Holdings Berhad, which comprise the statements of
financial position as at 30 June 2022 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year ended 30 June 2022, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 10 to 68.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2022, and of their financial performance and their cash flows
for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional
Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' [International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matter that, in our professional judgement, were of the most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

An Independent member firm of Moore Global Network Limited
Member firms in principal cities throughout the warld



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD {(cont'd)

Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and
our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the Directors’
Report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility
is to read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Directors’
Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company that give a frue and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016
in Malaysia. The Directors are alsc responsible for such internai control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD (conf'd)

Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont'd)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

{®

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence thaf is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the Company’'s ability to continue as a
geing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other maiters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD (cont'd)

Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiary
of which we have not acted as auditors, is disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements.

Other Matter
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of

the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysfa and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

Mesee

MOORE STEPHENS ASSOCIATES PLT LO KUAN CHE
201304000972 (LLPO000963-L.CA) 03016/11/2022 )
Chartered Accountants (AF002096) Chartered Accountant

Petaling Jaya, Selangor
Date: 18 October 2022
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DYNAFRCONT HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the financial
year/period

Other comprehensive income,

net of tax

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign

operation

Total comprehensive income
for the financial year/period

Profit/{loss) attributable to:
- Owiers of the Company
- Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

- Owners of the Company

- Non-controlling interest

Basic earnings per ordinary
share attributable to Owners
of the Company (sen):

The annexed notes form an integral part of,

Note

[s2 B4

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
11,010,629 0,232,242 2,450,869 -
(3,480,780) {4,221,392) - -
7,529,849 5,010,850 2,450,869 -
341,573 164,945 107,226 -
(2,358,476) {1,018,294) (1,853,297) (722,010)
(2,459,436) (3,001,346) {19,031) {(4,400)
3,083,510 1,156,155 685,767 (726,410)
(30,259) (46,742) - -
3,023,251 1,109,413 685,767 (726,410)
(859,319) {519,401) {22,866) -
2,163,932 590,012 662,901 (726,410)
36,682 (106,000) - -
2,200,614 484,012 662,901 {726,410}
2,173,133 616,419 662,901 (726,410}
(9,201) (26,407) - -
2,163,932 590,012 662,901 (726,410)
2,206,147 521,019 662,901 (726,410)
(5,533) (37,007 - -
2,200,614 484,012 662,801 (726,410)
2.53 1.03

and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements,

10
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DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD

{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Tax recoverable

Deferred tax assets

Current Assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Contract assets

Amount due from shareholder

Amount due from a subsidiary

Fixed deposits placed with
licensed banks

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital

Retained earnings/(Accumulated

losses)
Reserves
Total equity attributable to
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest

Total Equity

Note

10
1
12
13

14
15
16
17
18

19

20

21

Group Company

2022 2021 2022 2021

RM RM RM RM
377,344 363,870 - -
1,250,910 1,728,005 - -
20 140 - -

- - 5,757,708 5,757,708

61,897 56,063 - -
52,000 98,500 - -
1,742,171 2,276,578 5,757,708 5,757,708
1,029,034 1,708,241 - B
281,621 304,865 - -
464,741 286,535 - -
148,000 137,605 - -

- - 444,000 -

3,626,387 2,565,839 - -
14,688,311 1,579,552 10,627,715 50,002
20,238,094 6,580,637 11,071,715 50,002
21,980,265 8,857,215 16,829,423 5,807,710
16,573,447 5,202,002 16,573,447 5,202,002
6,224,174 4,051,041 {63,509} (726,410)
(3,399,893) (3,432,907} - -
19,397,728 5,820,136 16,509,938 4,475,592
113,440 118,973 - -
19,511,168 5,839,109 16,509,938 4,475,592

11
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DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Incorparated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022 (cont'd)

Non-Current Liability
Lease liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Amount due to a Director
Tax payable

Total Liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

Note

22

23
24
16
22
25
26

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
141,637 502,208 - -
560,232 22,289 - -
883,517 783,911 296,619 81,244
272,813 492,861 - -
360,570 837,682 - -
- - - 1,056,852
- 194,022 - 194,022
250,328 85,133 22,866 -
2,327,460 2,415,898 319,485 1,332,118
2,469,097 2,918,108 319,485 1,332,118
21,980,265 8,857,215 16,829,423 5,807,710

The annexed notes form an integral part of,
and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.

12




€l

601'6E6'C £J6'8L1 9g1'0Z8's LP0'LS0'Y {g6¥'cT) {60v'601'C) - z00'z02's LZ0Z aunr g v
{898'980'c) {000'orL) (gg8'026'Y) {(z81180'¢) - {60%'60r'E) {667'299'¢) 200°202'S Auedwod ay)
10 SIaumQ YIm SuotIdeSUERl) B30 L
(80.'cG8) - {802'656) - - (60F'60¥'€) {662'8V£2) 000°202'S rAs (pBuLMoNNsa)
10 108y9/58)8YS JO BOUBNSS| -
{ooo‘oor'L) {000'avL) {000'FLE'L) - - - {000'FLE'L) - FA Aeipisgns g
woJp Bujsue uononpal [2lden -
(zaL'1e0'e) - {zgL'L50'e) {zgL150'c) - - - - {(o)zg Rreipisans e jo
siapjoyseys Jaluloy) O pied spuapiug -
z - z - - - - Z 0z (xSBIBUS AJBUIDIO MBU JO BOUENSS -
:Auedwon
B} JO SIaUMQ Yiim suonoesuel
ZL0'vey (£00°/€) 6L0°L2S GLP'9LO {oot's6) - - - sl aalsusyadwod [2jo L
{oo0'90tL) {009'01) (00t'G6) - {oov'cs) - - - uonessdo ublaio) i0j
Sa0USIaYIP UolE|sUBl} Aausamnd ubieio4
awoaur saisuayaadwon 1Yo
210'065 {20v'92) 6LT'9LO BL¥'aLo - - - - Xe1 J0 13U (550])/1104d
S86'L£5°0L 086'L0S 500'0ZZ°0L #08'S8%'9 Z06'LL - §67'209°¢ - 0202 AINF £ v
dnoin
Wy Wy W (] ] Wy Wy W 810N
Aunbg 1S2UU| |ejo ] sBuitiesy DA19SDY anlasay Aunbg |euden
ee ] Buyjonuon pauleloy uofiesues | Suunionuisay  pa)saAl] areyg
-LUON s1qeInqisiq Asuaunn

A

ubiaiog

i

AAEINGLYSIQ-UON

Auedwon ay) Jo s1BUMQ 0] SiqEINGLEIY

I
P

e
-

2202 ANNr € d3AN3 JV3A TVIONYNIL FHL 804
ALINDA NI SIONVYHO 40 LNINILYLIS A3 LVAITOSNOD

(eisAejepy ul pajelodionu))
avH¥Ead SONIGTOH LNOYUAVYNACG

(X-90¥86£1) 80270100207 - ON uonessibay



142

"SJUBLLBIELS |I0UBUIl 98U ‘Ui Uonouniuos ul peal aq pjnous pue

‘Jo 1ed |[ei1bajul ue WO} SBJoU paxXauUR By

'Z2E GJON W peuieidxe se esivtexg Butinjonnsay sy woy asode Bunniongsa. jo Joaye ayj ©
‘uortelodioout JO dlep ey U0 sauseys Aleuipio 7 jo Bulisisuos Zin Jo jejides aseys dn-pred Ayng pue pansst ue ypm peresodioour sem Auedwon ey @

‘pejussad poad jsaies

BY} O JIBJS 8} 8I0J8q PA.LINGA0 pel Bulimoanysal syj i Se pajuasaid aie SJuaWJe]S [eiouBuy S,0N0J0) 8yj Ut saunbyy aapesedwios ay} ‘ze SJoN W paurRidXs SY (1

89L'L1G'61 opP'ELL 8Z.°16E'61 (AR ZAR) 915'6 {60 '60F'E) - IPP'ei5'0L Z20Z sunr Qg 3w
ShP'LLC L) - Shr' 1Lt - - - - Ghr L2E'LL Auedwog ayy
10 SIBUMQ) Y)im SuUojoBSUR) [B]O L
000°02S 11 - 000'025°1L - - - - 000°02S Lt 0z $8IBUS JO BoUeNss| -
{566'arL) - {655'8%1) - - - - (s55'ar1) 0z sasUBdxe SDUBNSS| BIEYS -
:Auedwon
BU) JO SIFUMQ YHM SUOJIOBSLRE |
¥18'002'2 (££5'6) [¥1'002'2 CEL'SLLE ¥10'CE - - - SO SAISUBYSAULI0D §2)0 )
799°9¢ g09'c r10'ce - ¥10'gE - - - uonesedo ubtoioy Joj
saouUalayIp uoe|suel) Aouaung ubiaio-y
130sU] dAlsusyardwiod Jaylo
ZEB'COLE {10z'6) £EL'ELL'E £eL'BIL'E - - - - xe} 40 19u {$50)/10.d
601°6E6'C €16'8LL 9£1'028'S w0'LSO'Y {g6p'cz) (60r'601'E) - Z00'202'S bZoz A L Iy
dnoug
W (WF Wy W Wy (3] Wy Wy 210N
Ainbg jsa19jU| 1elol sBulutey aA18SaYy CINELT)Y Ajnbg lenden
[z LN Sunjosuon paulelay uotjejsues | Buumonisay  pasaAly aleys
-uoy ajgeingulsiq Aouaimnn

A

ubaioy

a[qenqlasig-uoN

Auedwon ayy 10 SISUMQ 0] S{QINGLY

T
.

0
P

(pjuoo) zZoz INNC 0€ AIANT YVIA TVIONVYNIZ FHL HOd
ALIND3A NI SASNVYHD 40 INIFWILVYLS 31vaAITOSNOD

{eisAejepy w1 pajelodioouy)
avH«39d SONIQIOH LNOH4YNAQ

(X-90¥86¢1) 58020100202 :"ON uonesibay



Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Share  Accumulated Total
Capital losses Equity
Note RM RM RM
Company
At 18 December 2020 (Date of incorporation) 2 - 2
Loss net of tax, representing total comprehensive
income for the financial period - (726,410} {726,410)
Transaction with Owners of the Company:
~ Issuance of shares, representing total
transaction with Owners of the Company'” 32 5,202,000 - 5,202,000
At 30 June 2021 5,202,002 (726,410) 4,475,692
At 1 July 2021 5,202,002 (726,410) 4,475,592
Profit net of tax, representing total comprehensive
income for the financial year - 662,901 662,901
Transactions with Owners of the Company:
- Share issuance expenses 20 (148,558) - {148,555}
- Issuance of shares 20 11,520,000 - 11,520,000
Total transactions with Owners of the Company 11,371,445 - 11,371,445
At 30 June 2022 16,573,447 {63,509} 16,509,938

)] The issuance of shares arose from the Resfruciuring Exercise as explained in Note 32.

The annexed notes form an integral part of,
and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Registration No.: 202001042085 {1398408-X)

DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
Note RM RM RM RM
Cash Flows from Operating
Activities
Profit/{loss) before tax 3,023,251 1,109,413 685,767 {726,410)
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible
assetls 120 120 - -
Plant and equipment written off 1,583 120 - -
Depreciation of plant and
equipment 89,380 88,517 - -
Depreciation of right-of-use
assetls 511,206 869,325 - -
Interest expense 30,259 48,742 - -
Interest income (156,693) {67.996) (95,273) -
Dividend income - - (930,869) -
Gain on disposal of plant and
equipment (36,000} - - -
Unrealised (gain)/loss on
foreign exchange (33.609) 6,644 14,000 4,400
Waiver of lease liabilities - (35,863) - -
Operating profit/{foss) before
changes in working capital 3,429,497 2,017,022 (326,375} (722,010)
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables 717,696 1,837,302 - -
Trade and other payables 625,074 124,178 215,375 81,244
Contract assets (178,206) (80,047} - -
Contract liabilities (221,940) 17,920 - -
Cash generated from/{used in)
operations 4,372,121 3,916,373 {111,000) (640,766)
Interest paid (30,259) {46,742) - -
Interest received 156,693 67,996 95,273 -
Tax paid (651.672) (813,982) - -
Net cash from/{used in)
operating activities 3,846,883 3,123,635 (15,727} (640,766)
Cash Flows from Investing
Activities
Additional investment in
subsidiaries 32 - - - {555,708}
Purchase of plant and equipment 8 (70,307) (6,666) - -
Advance to a subsidiary - - (458,000) -
Dividend income - - 930,869 -
Proceeds from disposal of plant
and equipment 36,000 - - -
Net cash {used in)/from
investing activities (34,307 (6,666) 472,869 (555,708)
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Registration No.: 202001042085 {1398406-X)

DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 (cont'd)

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
Note RM RM RM RM
Cash Flows from Financing
Activities
{Repayment to)/advances from
subsidiaries - - (1,0586,852) 1,062,452
(Repayment to)/advances from a
Director (i) (194,022) 194,022 (194,022} 194,022
Dividends paid fo former
shareholders of a subsidiary 32(c) - (3,051,182) - -
Payment for the principal portion
of lease liabilities (i), i) (843,540) (1,270,672) - -
Proceeds from issuance of
ordinary shares, net 20 11,371,445 2 11,371,445 -
Net cash from/{used in)
financing activities 10,333,883 (4,127,830} 10,120,571 1,246,474
Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents 14,146,459 (1,010,861) 10,577,713 50,000
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the financial
year/date of incorporation 4,145,391 5,163,535 50,002 2
Effect of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents 22,848 (7,283) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the financial
year/period (i 18,314,698 4,145,391 10,627,715 50,002
Note:
0] Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Fixed deposits placed 3,626,387 2,565,839 - .
with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances 14,688,311 1,579,552 10,627,715 30,002
18,314,698 4,145,391 10,627,715 50,002
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Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 (cont'd)

Note: (cont'd}

(i)  Cash outflows for right-of-use assets are as follows:

Included in net cash from/{used in} operating activities:
- Interest paid in relation to lease liabilities

- Payment relating to short-term lease

- Payment relating to low value assets

Included in net cash from/(used in) financing activities:
- Payment for the principal portion of lease liahilities

Total cash outflows for leases

Group
01.07.2021 01.07.2020
to fo
30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM
(30,083) (46,742)
- (70,320)
{1,210) (2,110)
(843,540) (1,270,672)
(874,833) {1,389,844)

(i)  The reconciliation of the movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:

2022

At 1 July 2021
Exchange differences
Interest expense
Repayment

Net changes from financing cash flows

At 30 June 2022

2021

At 1 July 2020
Addition (Note 9)
Advance from
Exchange differences
Waiver

Interest expense
Repayment

Net changes from financing cash flows

At 30 June 2021

The annexed notes form an integral part of,

and should be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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Group and

Company Group
Amount due to Lease
a Director liabilities
RM RM
194,022 1,339,890

- 5,857

- 30,083
(194,022) {873,623)
{194,022) {843,540)

- 502,207

- 1,959,554

- 719,711

194,022 -
- (32,840)
- {35,863)

- 46,742
- (1,317,414)
- (1,270,672)

184,022 1,339,890




Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

DYNAFRONT HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 30 JUNE 2022

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as DynaFront Holdings Sdn. Bhd. on 18 December 2020 as a
private limited liability company and is domiciled in Malaysia. On 10 March 2021, the Company
was converted into a public limited liability company by shares and assumed its present name.
On 23 July 2021, the Company was successfully listed on the LEAP Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.

The registered office of the Company is located at Unit 30-01, Level 30, Tower A, Vertical
Business Suite, Avenue 3, Bangsar South, No. 8, Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah
Persekutuan.

The principal place of business of the Company is located at C-8-1, 8" Floor, Corporate Office
Tower Block C, KL Trillion, 338, Jalan Tun Razak, 50400 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The principal activities and other
information of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 11. There have been no significant changes in
the nature of these activities of the Group and of the Company during the financial year.

The Directors regard Watergate Solidwood Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia as
the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a Board of Directors’
resolution dated 18 October 2022,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
{a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (*MFRSs"), International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016
in Malaysia.

The Group and the Company have also considered the new accounting pronouncements
in the preparation of the financial statements.

(i) Accounting pronouncements that are effective and adopted during the
financial year

Amendments to MFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and
MFRS 16

The adoption of the above did not have any significant effect on the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company.
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Registration No.: 202001042085 {1398406-X)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (cont'd)

(a)

(c)

Statement of compliance (cont'd)

(i1)

Accounting pronouncements that are issued but not yet effective and have not
been early adopted

The Group and the Company have not adopted the following accounting
pranouncements that have been issued as at the date of authorisation of these
financial statements but are not yet effective for the Group and the Company: -

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Amendments to MFRS 3
Amendments to MFRS 116

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
hefore Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiing a
Confract

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 — 2020

Amendmenis to MFRS 137

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendmenits to MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to MFRS 17 initial Application of MFRS 17 and MFRS 8
- Comparative Information

Amendments to MFRS 101 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
Amendmenis to MFRS 101 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies
MFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to MFRS 108 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Armendments to MFRS 112 Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Effective date to be announced

Amendments to MFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
MFRS 128 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group and the Company will adopt the above accounting pronouncements
when they become effective in the respective financial periods. These accounting
pronouncements are not expecied to have any effect to the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company upon their initial applications.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared on the
historical cost convention except otherwise disclosed in the accounting policy notes.

Functional and presentation currency

The individuat financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia
(*RM"}, which is also the Company’s functional currency, unless otherwise stated.
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Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (cont'd)

(d)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The summary of accounting policies as described in Note 3 are essential to understand
the Group's and the Company's results of operations, financial position, cash flows and
other disclosures. Certain of these accounting policies require critical accounting estimates
that involve complex and subjective judgements and the use of assumptions, some of
which may be for matters that are inherently uncertain and susceptible to change. Directors
exercise their judgement in the process of applying the Group's and the Company's
accounting policies.

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation
of the financial statements. They affect the application of the Group's and of the Company's
accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. Estimates and underlying assumptions are assessed on an on-going
basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The actual results may
differ from the judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management, and will
seldom equal the estimated results,

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation or
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment fo the carrying amaunts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
vear are setf out below.

{i) Income taxes

There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax
determination may be different from the initial estimate. The Group and the Company
recognise tax liabilities based on its understanding of the prevailing tax laws and
estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business.

Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

(i} Impairment of financial assets and receivables

The Group and the Company assess on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
loss associated with their debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied as disclosed in Note 3(n){i) depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by MFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime [osses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

(i} Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax implications arising from the changes in corporate income tax rates are
measured with reference to the estimated realisation and settlement of temporary
differences in the future periods in which the tax rates are expected to apply, based
on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. While
management’s estimates on the realisation and settlement of temporary differences
are based on the available information at the reporting date, changes in business
strategy, future operating performance and other factors could potentially impact on
the actual timing and amount of temporary differences realised and settled. Any
difference between the actual amount and the estimated amount would be
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which actual realisation and settlement
OCCUFS,
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Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in
these financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controfled by the Company.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

The Company controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing
controt only when such righis are substantive. The Company also considers it has
de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting
rights, it has the current ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly
affect the investee’s return.

Investment in subsidiaries are measured in the Company's statement of financial
position at cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale or distribution. The cost of investment includes transaction costs. On
disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and
their carrying amounts is included in the profit or loss.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the
acquisition date, which s the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition
date as:

- the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

- the recognised amount of any non-controiling interests in the acquiree; plus

- if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing
equity interest in the acquiree; less

- the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in
the profit or loss.

For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets at the acquisition date,

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity
instruments, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are
expensed as incurred.

Acqguisition of non-controlling interests

The Group accounts for all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control as equity transactions between the Group and its non-
controling interest holders. Any difference befween the Group's share of net assets
before and after the change, and any consideration received or paid, is adjusted to
or against Group's reserves.,
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Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (cont'd)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

Acquisition from entities under common control

The business combinations under common control are accounted for in accordance
with merger accounting. In applying merger accounting, the financial statements
incorporate the financial statement items of the combining entities or business in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities or business first came under the control of the
controlling party, and that control is not transitory.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are accounted for based on
the carrying values from the controlling parties’ perspective at the date of transfer.
No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of the acquirer's interest
in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilites and contingent
tiabilities over cost at the time of common control combination. The consolidated
statement of comprehensive income includes the results of each of the combining
entities or businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the common control, where this
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control combination.

When the merger method is used, the cost of investment in the Company's books is
recorded at the nominal value of shares issued. The difference between the carrying
value of the investment and the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries is
treated as a restructuring reserve.

Loss of control

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and
liabilities of the former subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other
components of equity related to the former subsidiary from the consolidated
statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is
recognised in the profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former
subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost.
Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as a financial
asset depending on the level of influence retained.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable directly
or indirectly, to Owners of the Company, and is presented separately in the
consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, separately from equity attributable to Owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interest is initially measured at acquisition-date share of net assets other
than goodwill as of the acquisition dafe and is subsequently adjusted for the changes
in the net assets of the subsidiary after the acquisition date.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interests esven if that
results in a deficit balance.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and fransactions, and any unrealised income and expenses
arising from intra-group transactions between subsidiaries in the Group, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

23



Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of the Company and its subsdiaries,
transactions in currencies other than the Company and its subsidiaries’ functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in Ringgit Malaysia using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currencies at
the exchange rates on the reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are not retranslated at the reperting date except for those that are
measured at fair value are refranslated to the functional currency at the exchange
rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are included in the profit or loss for the period except
for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the Group's net
investment in foreign operation.

(i)  Foreign Operations Denominated in_Functional Currencies other than Ringait
Malaysia

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency (RM) of the consolidated financial
statements are translated into RM as follows:-

. Assets and liabilities for each reporting date presented are translated at the
closing rate prevailing at the reporting date;

. Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the year,
which approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; and

. All resulting exchange differences are taken to other comprehensive income.,

Exchange reserve in respect of a foreign operation is recognised to the profit or loss
when control, joint control or significant influence over the foreign operation is lost.
On partial disposal without losing control, a propertion of the exchange reserve in
respect of the subsidiary is re-attributed to the non-controlling interest. The
proportionate share of the cumulative translation differences is reclassified to the
profit or loss in respect of all other partial disposals.

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as a performance obligation in the contract with customer
is satisfied, f.e. when the “control”® of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation is a promise to transfer a distinct goods or service (or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer) to the customer that is explicitly stated in the contract and implied in the Group's
and the Company's customary business practices.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration to which the Group and the Company
expect to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to the
customers, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as sales taxes or
goods and services taxes. If the amount of consideration varies due to discounts, rebates,
refunds, credits, incentives, penalties or other similar items, the Group and the Company
estimate the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled based on the expected
value or the most likely outcome. If the contract with customer contains more than one
performance obligation, the amount of consideration is allocated to each performance
obligation based on the relative stand-alone selling prices of the goods or services
promised in the contract.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

(c)

(d)

Revenue and other income recognition {cont'd)

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The control of the promised goods or services may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. The control over the goods or services is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time if:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s and the Company’s performance as the Group and the Company perform;

- The Group's and the Company’s performance create or enhance an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- The Group’s and the Company’s performance do not creafe an asset with an
alternative use and the Group and the Company have an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Revenue for performance obligation that is not satisfied over time is recognised at the point
in time at which the customer obtains control of the promised goods or services.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised upon delivery of goods where the control
of the goods has been passed to the customers, or performance of services, net of sales
and goods and services taxes and discounts,

Service coniracts

Revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the progress or
milestone towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation and acceptance by
customers.

Other income earned by the Group and the Company are recognised on the following
basis:

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

Government grant

Government grant received from government on wages subsidy is recognised on monthly
basis over the qualified period under the criteria set by the government.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, social security contributions and bonuses are recognised as an expense
in the year/period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group and the Company. Short-term accumulating compensated absences such as paid
annual leaves are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their
entitlement to future compensated absences, and short-term non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when absences occur.

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is measured as additional
amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the end of the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(d)

(e)

)

Employee benefits (cont'd)

Defined contribution plan

As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the state pension
scheme, the Employees Provident Fund ("EPF"). Such contributions are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group and the Company
have no further payment obligations.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are not directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognised in the profit or loss using the effective
interest method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or completed,

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Income taxes
Current tax

Tax expense represents the aggregate amount of current and deferred tax. Current tax is
the expected amount payable in respect of taxable income for the financial year/period,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, and any
adjustments recognised for prior years’ tax. When an item is recognised ouiside profit or
loss, the related tax effect is recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the liahility method, on all temporary differences between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction, which is not a business combination and at the time
of the transaction, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the assets are
realised or the liabilities are seftled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there are sufficient taxable
temporary differences relating to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority
to offset or when it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
assets can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

{f)

{9)

Income taxes (cont'd)
Deferred tax {cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assefs are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profit will be available for the assets to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correfation to the underlying transactions
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from
business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition or the amount of any
excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities aver the acquisition cost.

Value Added Tax

Revenue, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of Value Added Tax
("VAT") except:

. Where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case the VAT is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense of the asset or as part of the
expense item as applicable; and

. Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authorities is included
as part of receivables or payables in the statements of financial position.

Leases

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cast, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or {0 restore the underlying asset or site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or
the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets are as
follows:

Computers and software 2.5 years
Leasenold office units 20 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Premises 1.510 2 years

If right-of-use assets relates to a class of plant and equipment to which the lessee applies
the revaluation model in MFRS 116, a lessee may elect to apply that revaluation model to
all of the right-of-use assets that relate to that class of plant and equipment.

The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are presented as a separate line in the
statements of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Leases (cont'd)

In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The Group applies MFRS 136 to
determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in Note 3(n)(ii).

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rates. Lease
payments included in the measurement of the lease liability include fixed payments, any
variable lease payments, amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, and exercise price under an extension option that the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. [t is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in rate,
or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or
termination option.

Lease paymenis associated with short-term leases and leases of low value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low value assefs are those assets
valued at less than RM20,000 each when purchased new.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share {"EPS"} is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year/period.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year/period for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

] Recognition and measurement

Cost includes expenditures that are directly atiributable to the acquisition of the
assets and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use, cost of replacing component parts of the assets, and
the present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the assets after
their use. The cost of self-consfructed assets also includes the cost of materials and
direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

When significant parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of plant and
equipment.

Plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising on the
disposal of plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in the
profit or foss.
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)

()

Plant and equipment {(cont'd)

(iiy Subseguent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of piant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognised in the
profit or loss as incurred.

(i Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant
components of individual assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life
that is different from the remainder of that asset, then that component is depreciated
separately.

Depreciation is recognised in the profit or loss on straight line basis over its
estimated useful lives of each component of an item of plant and equipment at the
following annual rates:

Computers and software 40%
Furniture and fittings 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 10% — 25%
Renovation 10%
Signboard 10%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at end of the
reporting period and adjusted as appropriate.

Fully depreciated plant and equipment are retained in the financial statements until
they are no longer in use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect
of these plant and equipment.
Intangible assets
Trademark
Trademark is recognised as intangible asset if it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to such asset will flow to the Group and the costs of such
asset can be measured reliably.

Trademark is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The frademark is assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

Subseguent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the
profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.

Amortisation is recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estmated
useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use.

29



Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

3.
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(i)

(k)

)

(m)

Intangible assets (cont'd)
Amortisation {cont'd)

The estimated useful lives of the trademark for the current and comparative periods are 10
years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted, if appropriate.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet availabte for use
are not amortised but are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Gain or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, bank balances and fixed deposits
placed with licensed banks that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statements
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged
deposits, if any.

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets and fiabilities in services contract represent the timing differences in
revenue recognition and the milestone billings. The milestone billings are structured and/or
negotiated with customers to reflect physical completion of the contracts.

Contract asseis are fransferred fo receivables when the rights to economic benefits
become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group issues billing fo the customer.
Contract assets are recognised as revenue when performance obligations are satisfied.

When there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount of impairment losses is
determined by comparing the contract asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows to be generated by the contract asset.

Contract liabilities are the obligation to transfer goods or services to customers for which
the Group has received the consideration or has billed the customer. In the case of services
contract, contract liabilities are the excess of the hillings to-date over the cumulative
revenue earned. Contract liabilities include down payments received from custemers and
other deferred income where the Group has billed or has collected the payment before the
goods are delivered or services are provided to the customers.

Financial instruments
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statements of financial
position when, and only when, the Group or the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without significant financing
component) or a financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for
an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable fo its acquisition or issuance. A frade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(m)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

®

(ii)

Initial recognition and measurement (cont'd)

An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract where the
host contract is not a financial asset, and accounted for separately if, and only if, the
derivative is not closely related to the ecanomic characteristics and risks of the host
contfract and the host contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The host contract, in the event an embedded derivative is recognised separately, is
accounted for in accordance with policy applicable to the nature of the host contract.

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows:
Financial assets

Categories of financial assefs are determined on initial recognition and are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group or the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following
the change of the business model.

Amortised cost

Amortised cost category comprises financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and its
contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The financial assets
are not designated as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the profit or
loss.

Interest income is recognised by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount except for credit impaired financial assets (see Note 3{n)(i)) where the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost.

All financial assets are subject to impairment assessment (see Note 3(n)(i)).
Financial liabilities

Amortised cost

The financial liabifities of the Group and of the Company are initially recognised as
amortised cost. Other financial liabilities not categorised as fair vaiue through profit
or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit

or loss. Any gains or losses on derecognition are also recognised in the profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

{m} Financial instruments (cont'd)

(iii)

(iv}

{v)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group or the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either
to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and liability simultanecusly.

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets

A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the market place concerned.

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised and derecognised,
as applicable, using trade date accounting. Trade date accounting refers to:

(a) the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on the
trade date; and

(b) derecognition of an asset that is sald, recognition of any gain or loss on
disposal and the recognition of a receivable from the buyer for payment on
the trade date.

Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or control of the asset is not
retained or substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets are transferred to another party. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised in the profit
or loss.

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation
specified in the confract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of
afinancial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the profit or
loss.

{(n} Impairment

{®

Financial assefs

The Group and the Company recognise loss allowances for expected credit losses
(*ECLs") on financial assefs measured at amortised cost and contract assets,
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.

LLoss allowances of the Group and of the Company are measured on either of the
following basis:

(i) 12-month ECLs — represents the ECLs that result from default events that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date {or for a shorter period
if the expected life of the instrument is fess than 12 months); or

(i)  Lifetime ECLs — represents the ECLs that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument or contract assets.
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(n)

Impairment (cont'd)

()

Financial assets (cont'd)

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

Simplified approach - trade receivables and coniract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide ECLs for all trade receivables
and contract assets as permitted by MFRS 9. The simplified approach required
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where applicable.

General approach - other financial instruments and financial guarantee contracts

The Group and the Company apply the general approach to provide for ECLs on all
other financial instruments and financial guarantee contracts, which requires the loss
allowance to be measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs at initial
recognition.

At each reporting date, the Group and the Company assess whether the credit risk
of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. In assessing whether the credit risk
of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Group and the Company consider reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's and
the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward looking information, where available.

If credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition or if the credit
quality of the financial instruments improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal {o 12-month ECLs.

The Group and the Company consider the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical experience
indicates that a financial asset to be in default when:

- The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group and the
Company in full, without recourse by the Group and the Company to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or

- The financial asset is more than 365 days past due.

The Group and the Company consider a financial guarantee contract to be in default
when the debtor of the loan is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the creditors
and the Group and the Company in full, without recourse by the Group and the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held). The Group and the
Company only apply a discount rate if, and to the extent that, the risks are not taken
info account by adjusting the expected cash shortfalls.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group and the Company are exposed to credit risk.
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(n)

Impairment {con{'d)

(i}

Financial assets {cont'd)

Credit impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group and the Company assess whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost is credit impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when
one or more evenis that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the observable data about
the following events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- A breach of contract such as a default or significant past due event (e.g. being
more than 180 or 365 days past due);

- The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to
the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession
that the iender would not otherwise consider (e.g. the restructuring of a loan
or advance by the Group and the Company on terms that the Group and the
Company would not consider otherwise);

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

- The disappearance of an active market for security because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off {either partially or full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group or the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's or the
Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due. Any recoveries made are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets (except deferred tax assets) are
reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognised
immediately in the profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which such impairment loss is recognised directly against any revaluation surplus
for the asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in
the revaluation surplus for that same asset. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from
other assets and groups.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating units is the greater of its
value-in-use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific fo the asset.
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(n)

(0}

(P

Impairment {cont'd)

{iy  Non-financial assets (cont'd)

Except for goodwill, assets that were previously impaired are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. Any subsequent
increase in recoverable amount is recognised in the profit or loss unless it reverses
an impairment loss on a revalued asset in which case it is faken to revaluation
reserve. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted by the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed,

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of
the subsidiary, joint venture or associate exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the
investment including the proceeds from its disposal. Any subsequent increase in
recoverable amount is recognised in the profit or loss.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the

Group and of the Company after deducting all of their liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity
instruments.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable
incremental fransaction costs. Dividends an ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the
period in which they are declared.

Issuance expense

Costs directly attributable to the issuance of instruments classified as equity are
recognised as a deduction from equity.

Operating segments
Operating segments are defined as components of the Group that:

(a) engage in business activities from which it could earn revenues and incur expenses
(including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of
the Group};

(b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker of the Group in making decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assessing its performance; and

{c) for which discrete financial information is available.
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(P

(a)

Operating segments (cont'd)

The Group reports separately information about each operating segment that meets any
of the fellowing guantitative thresholds;

(a) its reported revenue, including both sales to external customers and intersegment
sales or transfers, is 10% or more of the combined revenue, internal and external,
of all operating segments.

(b} the absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater, in
absolute amount of:

i) the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a
loss; and
(i) the combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss.

(¢} |ts assets are 10% or more of the combined segments that reported a loss.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be considered
reportable, and separately disclosed, if the management believes that information about
the segment would be useful to users of the financial statements.

Total external revenue reported by operating segments shall constitute at least 75% of the
revenue of the Group. Operating segments identified as reportable segments in the current
financial year in accordance with the quantitative thresholds would result in a restatement
of prior period segment date for comparative purposes.

Fair value measurements

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transactions,
is determined as the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The measurement assumes that the fransaction fo sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assel in its highest and best
use or by sefling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group and the Company use
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels
in a fair value hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group and the Company can access af the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly,

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group and the Company recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfers.
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4,

REVENUE
Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
Note RM RM RM RM
Rendering of services (i 10,435,768 8,668,070 - -
Sales of goods (i) 574,861 564,172 - -
Management fee (i) - - 1,520,000 -
Dividend income - - 930,869 -
11,010,629 9,232,242 2,450,869 -
Timing of revenue
recognition:
- Point in time 5,612,022 3,991,961 2,450,869 -
- Qver time 5,497,707 5,240,281 - -
11,010,629 9,232,242 2,450,869 -
(i) Rendering of services
Group
01.07.2021 01.07.2020
to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021
Note RM RM
Software installation, commissioning, post-
contract support and maintenance services
{"Proprietary software") (a) 4,185,031 4,154,219
Application service provider {"Managed services") {b) 4,938,061 3,427,789
Consultancy services {c) 1,312,676 1,086,062
10,435,768 8,668,070

(a) Software installation, commissioning. post-contract support and maintenance

services (“Proprietary software")

(i) Software installation and commissioning

Software solutions offered by the Group to its customers generally involve two
phases which are installation and commissioning respectively. These
integrated services include implementation, data migration, software design
or development, testing and go-live process.

Such integrated services are explicitly stated in the contract with customers.
The billing method by the Group is in the form of milestone billing which
represents the work completed with reference to stages which are stipulated
in the contract,
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4.  REVENUE (contd)

(i) Rendering of services {cont'd)

(@

(b)

Software _installation, commissioning, post-contract support and maintenance
services (“Proprietary software”

(i Post-contract support and maintenance services (‘PCSM")

The Group offers PCSM which is an after-sales element included in the
contract with customers on the software solutions. This represents the right of
customers to receive services or unspecified product
upgrades/enhancements, or both. Generally, these services include upgrade
support and correction of errors (i.e. bug fixes or debugging), as well as
unspecified upgrades or enhancements fowards software previously installed.
The period and duration of PCSM provided is dependent on the terms
stipulated in the respective contract.

Performance obligation ("PO"

The Group entered into separate fixed-price contracts with respective customers
and such obligations are distinct and are able to be performed separately and
tailored to respective needs of different customers. Based on individual contracts
with customers which comprised of two POs, software installation, commissioning
and PCSM are capable of being distinct and separately identifiable.

Software installation and commissioning will be considered as a single PO as these
two services are integrated and interdependent with the stages agreed in the
contract and the custemers are unable to use the software if one of the mentioned
natures of work is incomplete. The reason of PCSM being distinct is due to software
installed remain functional without the needs of PCSM. Accordingly, the Group
allocates the transaction price based on relative stand-alone selling price of each
PO.

Timing of recognition

For software installation and commissioning, the PO is satisfied over time upon
completion of services based on the milestone achievement. The completion of
installation and commissioning of software has generally no alternative use for the
Group as the software is customised according to the customer's needs and
specifications. The Group has an enforceable right to payment for the stages of
services performed by reference to the milestone of the contract agreed mutually.
Therefore, revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress fowards complete satisfaction of that agreed performance obligation
mentioned in the contract.

For PCSM, customers simultaneously consumed and received the benefits provided
by the Group on the service rendered and revenue is recognised over time. The
Group has an enforceable right to payment for the services provided completed over
the contract period.

Application service provider (“Managed services”)

The Group is engaged in providing management services to its customers’ sales via
an online portal. Revenue is recognised based on a pre-determined percentage of
total sales generated by its customers for a particular month or fixed monthly
subscription basis.
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REVENUE (cont'd)

0

(ii)

(iif)

Rendering of services (cont'd)

(b)  Application service provider (*"Managed services”) (cont'd)

Performance obligation (*PO")

The PO is satisfied upon rendering of services and billed on a monthly basis.

Timing of recognition/Unsatisfied PO

Revenue is recognised at point in time upon completion of services rendered. There
is no unsatisfied PO yet to be recognised as revenue as at the reporting date.

(c) Consultancy services

The Group entered into contract with customers to carry out consultancy services,
Revenue from consultancy services is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the contract.

Performance obligation ("PO™

The PO is satisfied upon rendering of services,

Timing of recognition/Unsatisfied PO

Revenue is recognised at point in time upon completion of services rendered. There
is no unsatisfied PO yet to be recognised as revenue as at the reporting date.

Sales of goods

Performance obligation ("PO™)

The contracts with customers are bundled and consist of obligations for the sale of
computer products (i.e. hardware, software and software license) and delivery of the said
goods to its customers in some instances. Contracts for bundled services are comprised
of multiple POs and are capable of being distinct and separately identifiable. However, the
management has assessed that the delivery obligation is primarily a value-added fulfilment
service and is not considered to be a significant distinct PO. Accordingly, the contract with
customers is considered as a single PO and is satisfied at point in time basis.

Timing of recognition/Unsatisfied PO

Revenue is recognised at point in time when the control over the goods have been
transferred to the customer and obtain customer acceptance of the said goods. Revenue
is recognised based on the price specified in the invoices, net of discounts, rebates and
incentives where applicable. There is no unsatisfied PO yet to be recognised as revenue
as at the reporting date.

Management fee

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time upon completion of services
rendered and billed on a monthly basis.

Unsatisfied long-term contracts

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from maintenance and
implementation charges yet to be recognised as revenue as at the reporting date. The disclosure
is only providing information for contracts that have a duration of more than one year.
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4. REVENUE {cont'd)

Unsatisfied long-term contracts {cont'd)

(i Maintenance charges

Group
01.07.2021 01.07.2020
to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM
Total contract revenue 3,835,294 2,600,113
Less: Cumulative revenue recognised (2,824,348) {1,707,633)
Aggregate amount of revenue that are partially or fully
unsatisfied as at reporting date 1,010,946 892 480
(i)  Installation and commissioning charges
Group
01.07.2021 01.07.2020
to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM
Total contract revenue 3,972,330 3,082,122
Less: Cumulative revenue recognised (3,640,895) (1,918,170)
Aggregate amount of revenue that are partially or fully
unsatisfied as at reporting date 331,435 2,063,952

The remaining unsatisfied performance obligations are expected to be recognised as
revenue within the next 12 to 24 months (2021: 12 to 24 months).

The contract assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers are disclosed in Note 16.

5. PROFIT/(L.LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after chargingf{crediting):-

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Auditors’ remuneration
- auditors of the Company:
- statutory audit 47,500 50,000 22,500 25,000
- overprovision in prior year {2,500) - - -
- others 10,000 - - -
- component auditors
- statutory audit - 20,079 - -
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PROFIT/(L.OSS) BEFORE TAX (conf'd)

Profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):- {cont'd)

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Amortisation of
intangible assets 120 120 - -
Depreciation of plant
and equipment 89,380 88,517 - -
Depreciation of
right-of-use assets 511,206 868,325 - -
Employee benefit
expenses (Neote a) 5,534,759 4,879,040 1,635,673 -
Gain on disposal of
plant and equipment (36,000) - - -
[nitial public offering
("1PO" expenses - 672,150 - 672,150
Interest expense on:
- Lease liabilities 30,083 46,742 - -
- Bank interest tax 176 - - -
Interest income (1586,693) (67,996) (95,273) -
Plant and equipment written off 1,583 120 - -
Unrealised (gain)/loss
on foreign exchange (33,609) 6,644 14,000 4,400
Realised {gain)/loss
on foreign exchange (76,093) 29,573 5,031 -
Right-of-use assets:
- Short-term lease - 70,320 - -
- Lease of low value assets 1,210 2,110 - -
Wage subsidies (Note b) - {60,000) - -
Waiver of lease liabilities - {35,863) - -
(a) The employee benefit expenses comprise:
Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Staff costs:
Salaries, allowances,
bonus and overtime 3,995,259 3,577,209 675,000 -
Contributions to defined
contribution plan 474,280 474,772 87,972 -
Social security
contributions 37,573 37,799 4,537 -
4,507,112 4,089,780 767,509 -
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5. PROFITALOSS) BEFORE TAX (cant'd)

(8} The employee benefit expenses comprise: (cont'd)

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to {o to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Directors’ remuneration:
Directors of the Company:
Executive Directors:
Fees 6,500 - 6,500 -
Salaries, bonus and
other emoluments 868,000 672,000 748,000 -
Contributions to defined
contribution plan 130,125 110,250 112,125 -
Social security
contributions 1,847 1,847 1,539 -
1,006,472 784,007 868,164 -
Director of the subsidiary:
Salaries and other
emoluments 21,175 5,163 - -
1,027,647 789,260 868,164 -

5,534,759 4,879,040 1,635,673 -

(b} Representing grant received from the Malaysian Government by a subsidiary of the
Company in relation to wage subsidies for eligible employees.

8. TAX EXPENSE

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Income tax:
- Current year 804,970 530,625 22,866 -
- Underprovision in
prior year 7.849 108,422 - -
812,819 639,047 22,866 -
Deferred tax (Note 13);
- Relating to origination
and reversal of
temporary differences 66,500 19,724 - -
- Qverprovision in
prior year (20,000) §139,370) - -
46,500 {119,646) - -
Tax expense for the
financial year/period 859,319 519,401 22,866 -
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6. TAX EXPENSE (cont'd)

Group

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2021: 24%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the financial year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The reconciliation of the tax amount at statutory income tax rate to the Group’s and the Company's
tax expense is as follows:

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021 30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Profit/{loss) before tax 3,023,251 1,109,413 685,767 {726,410)

Tax at the Malaysian

statutory income tax

rate of 24% (2021: 24%) 725,580 266,259 164,584 (174,338)
Effect of income subject to

17% (2021: 17%)

preferential tax rate * - (42,000) - -
Effect of Indonesia prevailing
tax rate of 22% (2021: 22%) 1,491 5,282 - -

Effect of Indonesia income tax
subject to small enterprises

deduction (25,929) - - -
Expenses not deductible for

tax purposes 127,186 287,105 30,104 174,338
Income not subject to tax {8,445) (14,475) (223,409) -
Deferred tax assets not

recognised 51,587 48,178 51,587 -
Under/(over)provision in

prior year:
- income tax 7,849 108,422 - -
- deferred tax {20,000) {139,370) - -
Tax expense for the financial

year/period 858,319 519,401 22,866 -
* The determination of whether an entity will be entitled to Small and Medium Enterprise

("SME"} preferential tax rate will be on the first day of the basis period. The first day of the
basis period for Dynafront Systems Sdn. Bhd. was 1 July 2020, hence it would be eligible
for the preferential tax rate of 17%. With effect from Year of Assessment 2022, DynaFront
Systems Sdn. Bhd. is ineligible for the preferential tax rate of 17% as it ceased to fall under
the definition of SME.

The Group and the Company have estimated unutilised tax losses of RM215,000 (2021: Nif)
available for set-off against future taxable profits.
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7. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing profit after tax
attributable to Owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the financial year,

Group
01.07.2021 01.07.2020
to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021
Basic earnings per ordinary share:
Profit after tax atfributable to Owners of the Company (RM) 2,173,133 616,419
Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
Number of ordinary shares at beginning of the financial
year/date of incorporation 60,000,000 2
Effect of restructuring® - 59,999,098
Shares issued pursuant to allotment of shares
{"Public Issue"} on 19 July 2021 11,408,219 -
Shares issued pursuant to private placement an
4 February 2022® 14,400,000 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
{unit) at end of the financial year 85,808,219 60,000,000
Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen) 2.53 1.03
) Based on the issued share capital of 59,999,998 ordinary shares after the completion of

restructuring exercise which were assumed fo be issued throughout the financial year
ended 30 June 2021 as the acquisition of subsidiaries were accounted under common
controf under the merger accounting method of consolidation.

@ Based on weighted average number of shares to the allotment of shares of 12,000,000
ordinary shares ("Fublic Issue”) on 19 July 2021.

@ Based on weighted average number of shares to the alloiment of shares of 36,000,000
ordinary shares on 4 February 2022.

The aggregate number of ordinary shares on completion of the restructuring exercise, allotment
of shares (*Public [ssue”) and private placement is 108,000,000 (2021: 60,000,000).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there is no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.
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9.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Computers
Leasehold and Motor
office units software vehicles Premises Total
RM RM RM RM RM
Group
2022
Cost
At 1 July 2021 1,252,364 636,904 1,411,403 1,463,688 4,764,359
Transfer to plant and
equipment - (636,904) “ - {636,904)
Expiry of lease
premises - - - (743,977) {743,977)
Exchange differences 39,272 - - - 39,272
At 30 June 2022 1,291,636 - 1,411,403 719,711 3,422,750
Accumulated
Depreciation
At 1 July 2021 161,328 636,904 1,324,218 923,804 3,036,354
Charge for the
financial year 64,165 - 87,185 359,856 511,206
Transfer to plant and
equipment - {636,904) - - (636,904)
Expiry of lease
premises - - - (743,977) {743,977)
Exchange differences 5,181 - - - 5,161
At 30 June 2022 220,654 - 1,411,403 539,783 2,171,840
Net Carrying Amount
At 30 June 2022 1,070,982 - - 179,928 1,250,910
2021
Cost
At 1 July 2020 1,440,000 636,904 1,411,403 743,977 4,232,284
Addition - - - 719,711 719,711
Reclassification to
other receivables (1256,168) - - - {125,168)
Exchange differences (62,468) - - - (62,468)
At 30 June 2021 1,252,364 636,804 1,411,403 1,463,688 4,764,359
Accumulated
Depreciation
At 1 July 2020 102,000 486,573 1,108,776 474,069 2,171,418
Charge for the
financial year 53,717 150,331 215,442 449,835 869,325
Exchange differences (4,389) - - - (4,389)
At 30 June 2021 151,328 636,904 1,324,218 923,904 3,036,354
Net Carrying Amount
At 30 June 2021 1,101,036 - 87,185 539,784 1,728,005
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9.

10.

11.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (cont'd)

The expenses charged ta the profit or loss during the financial year are as follows:

Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 511,206 869,325
Interest expense on lease liabilities 30,084 46,742
Low value assels 1,210 2,110
Short-term lease - 70,320
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Trademark
Cost
At beginning/end of the financial year 1,200 1,200
Accumulated Amortisation
At beginning of the financial year 1,060 840
Charge for the financial year 120 120
At end of the financial year 1,180 1,060
Net Carrying Amount
At end of the financial year 20 140
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2022 2021
RM RM
Unquoted shares, at cost
At beginning of the financial year/date of incorparation 5,757,708 -
Effect of restructuring™ - 5,757,708
At end of the financial year 5,757,708 5,757,708

() Resulting from restructuring exercise as disclosed in Note 32.
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11. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES {(cont'd)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of Country of
Subsidiaries Incorporation Principal Activities Effective Equity Interest
2022 2021
DynaFront Mataysia Life insurance  applications, 100% 100%
Systems including development and
Sdn. Bhd. deployment of comprehensive
("DSB") insurance  software  solutions
ranging from front-end sales fo
back-end administrative systems
PT DynaFront Indonesia  Life insurance  applications, 90% 90%
Systems including development and
[ndonesia deployment of comprehensive
("PTDSI") insurance  software  solutions

ranging from front-end sales to
back-end administrative systems

*

Not audited by Moore Sfephens Associates PLT.

Non-controlling interest in subsidiary

The subsidiary of the Group that has non-controlling interest ("NCI"} is as follows:

2022 2021
RM RM

PTDS!

NCI percentage of ownership and voting interest 10% 10%
Carrying amount of NCI (RM) 113,440 118,973
Loss allocated to NCI (RM) (9,201) (26,407)
Other comprehensive income allocated to NCI 3,668 (10,600)
Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI (5,533) (37,007)

The summarised financial information (before intra-group elimination) of the subsidiary that has
NCI as at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

2022 2021
RM RM

PTDSI
Assets and liabilities:
Non-current assets 1,248,935 1,294,259
Current assefs 455,840 566,623
Current liabilities {570,381) {671,158)
Net assets 1,134,394 1,189,724
Resuits:
Revenue 1,075,801 284,052
l.oss for the financial year (92,012) (264,073)
Foreign currency translation differences for

foreign operations 36,682 (106,000)
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11.

12,

13.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

Non-controlling interest in subsidiary (cont'd)

The summarised financial information (before intra-group elimination) of the subsidiary that has
NCI as at the end of each reporting period is as follows: (cont'd)

2022 2021
RM RM

PTDSI (cont'd)
Cash flows:
- Net cash {(used in)/from operating activities (306,233) 15,032
- Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 214,148 (1,478)
- Net cash from/{used in) financing activities 195,002 (15,485)
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 102,917 {1,031)
TAX RECOVERABLE

Under the taxation laws of Indonesia, PTDSI submits tax return on the basis of self-assessment.
The Directorate General of Taxation may assess or amend taxes within five (5) years of the time
the tax becomes due.

The Directors are in view that the prepaid tax is not expected to be refunded within the next
twelve (12) months.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Group
2022 2021
RM RM
At beginning of the financial year {98,500) 21,148
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 6) 46,500 (119,648)
At end of the financial year (52,000) {98,500)
Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:
Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Deferred tax assets (56,000) (103,851)
Deferred tax liabilities 4,000 5,351
(52,000) (98,500)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised up to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will be available for the assets to be utilised.
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13.

14.

15.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (cont'd)

The recognised deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences before offsetting are as
follows;

Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Deferred tax assets:
- Advance payment from customers (50,000) {103,851)
- Differences between the carrying amount of plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and their tax bases {6,000) -
Deferred tax liabilities:
- Unrealised gain on foreign exchange 4,000 -
- Differences between the carrying amount of plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and their tax base - 5,351
{52,000) {98,500)

The Group and the Company have estimated unutilised tax losses of RM215,000 (2020: Nil) for
which no deferred tax assets have been recognised in the financial statements.

The comparative figure has been restated to reflect the actual unutilised tax losses carry forward
available to its subsidiary, PT DynaFront Systems Indonesia.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The normal credit term of trade receivables of the Group is 30 days (2021: 30 days). Other credit
terms are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Other receivables - 14
Deposits 145,845 149,172
Prepayments 96,324 101,381
VAT recoverable 39,452 54,298
281,621 304,865
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16.

17.

18.

CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Group
2022 2021
Note RM RM
Contract assets:
- Service contracts {i) 464,741 286,535
Contract liabilities:
- Advance payment from customers (272,813) {492,861)

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to consideration for work completed on
service contracts but not yet billed as at the reporting date. Typically, the amount will be billed
within 30 days and payment is expected within 30 days.

Contfract liabilities primarily relate to advance payment from customers before a related
performance obligation is satisfied by the Group and are expected to be recognised in revenue
in the subsequent financial year.

The contract assets will be transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

(iy  Service contracts

Group
2022 2021
RM RM
At beginning of the financial year 286,535 206,488
Revenue recognised during the financial year
[Note 4(i}] 10,435,768 8,668,070

Progress billings during the financial year {10,257,562) {8,588,023)
At end of the financial year 464,741 286,535

AMOUNT DUE FROM SHAREHOLDER
This represents the amount from the unpaid share capital due from shareholder of PTDSL.

PTDSI was incorporated with 10,000 units of ordinary shares at a price of IDR1,000,000 each
amounted to an equivalent of RM2,920,000. On 17 March 2021, the share capital of PTDS! was
reduced from I[DR10,000,000,000 to [DR5,000,000,000, equivalent to an amount of
RM1,460,000.

The unpaid share capital becomes due only when called upon by the Company, which is
allowable under the Indonesia's Company Law.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY

This non-trade amount represents unsecured, interest-free advance which is collectible on
demand.
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19.

20.

21.

FIXED DEPOSITS PLACED WITH LICENSED BANKS

The effective interest rates of the fixed deposits placed with licensed banks of the Group range
from 1.40% to 2.10% (2021: 1.40% to 1.90%) per annum and have maturity period ranging from
1 to 12 months (2021: 1 to 6 months).

SHARE CAPITAL

Note

Ordinary shares
issued and fully
At beginning of
the financial
year/period
Effect of restructuring
{Note 32)
Allotment of shares {i)
Private placement (ii)
Share issuance
expense
At end of the financial
year/period

Group and Company

Number of shares Amount
2022 2021 2022 2021
Unit Unit RM RM
60,000,000 2 5,202,002 2
59,099,998 - 5,202,000
12,000,000 - 2,520,000 -
36,000,000 - 2,000,000 -
- - {148,555) -
108,000,000 60,000,000 16,573,447 5,202,002

(i) Allotment of 12,000,000 new ordinary shares (“Public Issue”) on 19 July 2021 at RM0.21
per share totalling RM2,520,000 in conjunction with the Company’s Initial Public Offering
on the LEAP Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad; and

(i}  Issuance of 36,000,000 new ordinary shares on 4 February 2022 at RM0.25 per share

totalling RM9,000,000 pursuant to a private placement.

The new ordinary shares issued during the financial year/period rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing issued ordinary shares of the Company.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with
regards to the Company's residual interests.

RESERVES

Foreign currency translation reserve

Restructuring reserve
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Note

(i)
(i)

Group
2022 2021
RM RM
(9,516) 23,498
3,409,409 3,400,409
3,399,893 3,432,907
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21.

22,

RESERVES (cont'd)

(i)

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operation whose functional currency is
different from that of the Group's presentation currency. It is also used fo record the
exchange differences arising from monetary items which form part of the Group's net
investment in foreign operation, where the monetary itemn is denominated in either the
functional currency of the reporting entity or the foreign operation.

Restructuring Reserve

In the event where a new company is formed to facilitate a restructuring exercise, in which
the new company itself is not a business, book value accounting is applied. The assets
and liabilities acquired are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at their
respective carrying amounts as if the restructuring had occurred before the start of the
earliest period presented. The other components of equity of the acquired entities are
added to the same components within the Group's equity.

The restructuring reserve comprises the difference between cost of investment recorded
by the Company and the share capital of DSB and PTDSI arising from the restructuring
exercise as disclosed in Note 32.

L.LEASE LIABILITIES

Computers l.easehold
and Motor office units
software vehicles and premises Total
RM RM RM RM
Group
2022
Future minimum lease
payments:
Payable within one year - 186,986 185,118 372,104
Payable mere than 1 year
but not more than 2 years - 144,979 - 144,979
- 331,965 185,118 517,083
Less: Unexpired finance
charges - (13,403) (1,473) (14,876)
Present value of future
minimum lease payments - 318,562 183,645 502,207
Present value of future
minimum lease payments;
Payable within one year - 176,925 183,645 360,570
Payable more than 1 year
but not more than 2 years - 141,637 - 141,837
- 318,562 183,645 502,207
Analysed as:
Current - 176,925 183,645 360,570
Nor-current - 141,637 - 141,637
- 318,562 183,645 502,207
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22.

23.

LEASE LIABILITIES (cont'd)

Group

2021

Future minimum lease
payments:

Payable within one year

Payable more than 1 year
but not more than 2 years

Less: Unexpired finance
charges
Present value of future
minimum lease payments

Present value of future

minimum lease payments:

Payable within one year
Payable more than 1 year
but not more than 2 years

Analysed as:
Current
Non-current

Computers Leasehold
and Motor office units
software vehicles and Premises Total
RM RM RM RM
48,566 208,824 610,376 867,766
- 331,965 185,118 517,083
48,566 540,789 795,494 1,384,849
(1,024) (32,048) (11,887) {44,959)
47,542 508,741 783,607 1,339,890
47,542 190,178 599,962 837,682
- 318,563 183,645 502,208
47,542 508,741 783,607 1,339,890
47,542 100,178 599,962 837,682
- 318,563 183,645 502,208
47,542 508,741 783,607 1,339,890

The range of interest rates per annum at the reporting date for the lease liabilities are as follows;

Computers and software
Motor vehicles
Premises

TRADE PAYABLES

Group

2022
%

2.43 -2.60
3.60
5.49

2021
%

2.43 - 2.60
3.60
5.49

The normal credit term granted by the trade payables to the Group is 30 days (2021: 30 days).
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24.

25,

26.

27.

OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Other payables 105,239 93,739 - -
Accrusls 778,278 690,172 296,619 81,244
883,517 783,911 296,619 81,244

AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

These non-trade amounts represent unsecured, interest-free advance which are repayable on
demand.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

This non-trade amount represents unsecured, interest-free advance which is repayable on
demand.

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(a)

(b)

Identity of related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group and to the Company if the Group and the Company have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the Company and
the party are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or other entities.

The Group and the Company have related party relationships with the Company’s ultimate
holding company, subsidiaries, related parties and key management personnel. The
related parties are companies in which certain Directors have substantial financial interests
and/or are also Directors of the companies.

Related party transactions

The related party balances are shown in Notes 17, 18, 25 and 26 respectively, The related
party transactions of the Group and of the Company are shown below.

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020 01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022  30.06.2021 30.06.2022  30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Transactions with
subsidiaries:
DynaFront Systems
Sdn Bhd
- Repayment from - - 2,450,869 -
- {Repayment to)/advance
from, net - - (841,907) 841,907
- Management services - - (1,520,000) -
- Dividend - - (930,869) -
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27. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (cont'd)

(b) Related party transactions (cont'd)

The related party transactions of the Group and of the Company are shown below. (cont'd)

Group Company
01.07.2021 01.07.2020  01.07.2021 18.12.2020
to to to to
30.06.2022  30.06.2021 30.06.2022  30.06.2021
RM RM RM RM
Transactions with
subsidiaries: (cont'd)
PT DynaFront Systems
Indonesia
- Advance to - - {444,000) -
- {Repayment to)/advance
from, net - - (214,945) 214,945
Transactions with
related parties:
DynaFront International
Pte Ltd
- Repayment from - 2,716,836 - -
- Sales - (985,338) - -
Easicircle Sdn. Bhd.
- Repayment from/
(advance to), net - 1,017,108 - -
- Sales - (305) - -
Glossy Valley Sdn.
Bhd.
- Management fee 28,480 14,242 - -
- Repayment to, net {398,716) (451,022) - -
- Rental of premise, net
of rental waiver 370,236 364,432 - -
Transaction with a
Director:
- Repayment tof
{advances from), net (184,022) 194,022 (194,022) 194,022

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and contralling the activities of the Group and of the
Company either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel comprise all the
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries as well as certain senior management
personnel of the Group.
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27.

28.

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (cont'd)

() Compensation of key management personnel (cont'd)

The remuneration paid by the Group and the Company to key management personnel
during the financial year are as follows:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
Directors' remuneration:
Fees 6,500 - 6,500 -
Salaries and other
emoluments 889,175 677,163 748,000 -
Contributions fo defined
contribution plan 130,125 110,250 112,125 -
Social security
contributions 1,847 1,847 1,539 -
1,027,647 789,260 868,164 -
Key management personnel:
Salaries, allowances
and bonus 704,175 637,800 422,625 -
Contributions to defined
contribution plan 80,937 82,278 55,693 -
Social security
contributions 2,484 2,770 1,242 -
797,596 722,848 479,560 -
Total remuneration 1,825,243 1,512,108 1,347,724 -

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Reporting format

The Group does not have the reportable segments, as the services are managed indistinctly
because they require the similar technology and marketing strategies. Hence, segment analysis
has not been prepared as the Group's business is focused only in the business of providing life
insurance applications, including development and deployment of comprehensive insurance
software solutions ranging from front-end sales to back-end administrative systems.

Segment assefs

Segment assets are measured based on the geographical location of the assets, excluding
deferred tax assets and fax assets.

Segment liahilities

Segment liabilities are measured based on the geographical location of the liabilities, excluding
deferred tax liabilities and tax liabilities.
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28. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (cont'd)
Geographical segments

The internal management reports consist of performance based on geographical locations of the
customers as follows:

Group
01.07.2021 01.07.2020
to to
30.06.2022 30.06.2021
RM RM
Revenue
Malaysia 3,773,945 3,647,665
Hong Kong 47,500 -
Indonesia 6,492,991 5,365,815
Philippines 403,249 81,346
Thailand 282,944 137,416
11,010,629 9,232,242
The geographical information of the Group’s assets and liabilities is presented as follows:
Indonesia Malaysia  Elimination Total
Note RM RM RM RM
2022
Segment assets A 1,642,878 26,473,209 (6,249,719} 21,866,368
Segment liabilities B 570,381 2,140,389 {452,011) 2,218,769
Other information:
Addition to non-current
assets;
- Plant and equipment - 70,307 - 70,307
- 70,307 - 70,307
Indonesia Malaysia  Elimination Total
Note RM RM RM RM
2021
Segment assets A 1,804,819 14,058,648 (7,160,815) 8,702,652
Segment liabilities B 671,158 3,564,922 (1,403,107) 2,832,973
Other information:
Addition to non-current
assets:
- Plant and equipment 1,477 5,189 - 6,666
- Right-of-use assets - 719,711 - 719,711
1,477 724,900 . 726,377
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28.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (cont'd)
Gecographical segments (cont'd)

A The following items are deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position:

Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Investment in subsidiaries (5,757,708) (5,757,708)
Inter-segment assets {492,011) (1,403,107)
{(6,249,719) (7,160,815)
Reconciliation of assets:
Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Segment operating assets 21,866,368 8,702,652
Deferred tax assets 52,000 98,500
Tax recoverable 61,897 56,063
Total assets 21,980,265 8,857,215

B The following items are deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position:

Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Inter-segment liabilities (492,011) (1,403,107)
Reconciliation of liabitities:
Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Segment operating liabilities 2,218,769 2,832,973
Tax payable 250,328 85,133
Total liabilities 2,469,097 2,918,106

Major customer information

The Group has 3 customers {2021: 3 customers) which contribute approximately RM&.45 million
or 60% (2021: RM5.79 million or 63%) of the Group’s total revenue for the financial years ended
30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 respectively.
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29,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

The Group's and the Company’s financial assets (excluding prepayments) and financial liabilities
are all categorised at amortised costs.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s and the Company’s financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate
financial resources are available for the development of the Group’s and of the Company’s
operations whilst managing their financial risks, including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk and foreign currency risk. The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are
approved by the Board and the Group’s and the Company’'s policy are not to engage in
speculative transactions. The Group and the Company do not apply hedge accounting.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's and the Company’s exposure to the
above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management
of these risks.

(i}  Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group and the Company if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from its receivables (which consist of trade and
other receivables), contract assets and amounts due from shareholders of a subsidiary.
There are no significant changes as compared to prior years.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on
an ongoing basis. Credit risk is minimised and monitored via strictly limiting the Group's
assaciation to business partners with good credit rating. Credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of the trade receivables and
contract assets are credit impaired.

The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired receivables and contract assets are written
off (either partially or full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets ar sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to write-off.
Nevertheless, receivables and contract assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk from
receivables and contract assets is represented by the carrying amounts in the statements
of financial position as at end of the reporting period.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentration of credit risk by monitoring the profiles of its
receivables on an ongoing basis.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group has significant concentration of credit risk arising from the
amounts due from 3 customers (2021: 3 customers) constituting 94% (2021: 92%) of net
trade receivables of the Group.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies {cont'd)

(i)

Credit risk {cont'd}
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss

In managing credit risk of trade receivables, the Group manages its debtors and takes
appropriate gctions (including but not limited to legal actions) to recover long overdue
balances and to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are stated
at their realisable values. The Group has recognised a loss allowance of 100% for any
receivables over 180 days past due because historical experience has indicated that these
receivables are generally not recoverable.

The Group has applied the simplified approach in MFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime expected credit losses as disclosed in Note 3(n)(i).

The Group assesses impairment of trade receivables on individual basis. This is due to
the number of debtors is minimal and these debtors can be individually managed by the
Group in an effective and efficient manner. The Group has reasonable and supportable
information available to assess the impairment individually.

The Group will initiate appropriate debt recovery procedures on past due balances which
are monitored by the Directors and where necessary, the Group will also commence legal
proceeding against the customers.

Impairment losses

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables and contract assets as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021:

Group

2022 2021
RM RM

Trade receivables
Not past due 449,389 673,330

Past due:

- Less than 30 days 136,650 578,995
- 31 to 60 days 178,515 246,215
- 6110 90 days - 207,701
- More than 80 days 264,480 -
579,645 1,032,911
Trade receivables, net 1,029,034 1,706,241
Coniract assets 464,741 286,535
1,493,775 1,992,776

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good
payment records and mostly are regular customers that have been transacting with the
Group. None of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been
renegotiated during the financial year.

62



Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (cont'd)

(i)

(1i)

Credit risk (cont'd)
Impairment losses (cont'd)

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Group has not provided for these frade receivables as there has been no significant
changes in their credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable which are
not past due for more than 180 days. These relate to a number of independent customers
with slower repayment patterns, for whom there is no recent history of default. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement over these halances.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions. As at the
reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying
amounts in the statements of financial position. These banks and financial institutions have
low credit risks. Hence, a loss allowance is not necessary.

Other receivables

Expected credit loss of other receivables is determined individually after considering the
financial strength of the other receivables. As at the end of the reporting period, the
maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by their carrying amounts in the
statements of financial position.

Credit risk on deposits is mainly arising from deposits paid to its landlord as security and
utilities deposit which will be received upon termination of such services and thus have low
credit risk.

As at the end of the reporting pericd, no allowance for doubtful debts is necessary in
respect of other receivables and deposits that are neither past due nor impaired as these
are mainly arising from debtors that have good records of payment in the past.

Amounts due from shareholders

These represent the amounts from the unpaid share capital due from shareholders of
PTDSI (Note 17). On 17 March 2021, the share capital of PTDS! was reduced from
IDR10,000,000,000 to IDR5,000,000,000, which is equivalent to RM2,920,000 fo
RM1,460,000.

The Group considers these amounts to have low credit risks as the unpaid share capital
becomes due only when called upon by the Company, which is allowable under the
Indonesia’s Company Law.

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by their carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.

As at the reporting date, there were no indications of impairment loss in respect of amounts
due from shareholders.

Interest rate risk
As the Group did not have any floating rate instruments as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June

2021, a change in interest rates would not have any impact to the profit after tax and equity
of the Group.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {cont'd)
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (cont'd)
(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Group's and the Company's
exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of financial assets and liabilities.
The Group and the Company maintain sufficient levels of cash at a reasonable level to
meet their working capital requirements.

The following table sets out the maturity profile of the Group's and of the Company's
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on the rates at the end of the reporting peried):

R Contractual Cash Flows ---------- >
Carrying  On demand/
Amount Within 1 year 1 -2 years Total
RM RM RM RM
Group
2022
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 560,232 560,232 - 560,232
Other payables 883,517 883,517 - 883,517
Lease liabilities 502,207 372,104 144,979 517,083
1,045,956 1,815,853 144,979 1,960,832
2021
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 22,289 22,289 - 22,289
Other payables 783,911 783,911 - 783,911
Lease liabilities 1,339,880 867,766 517,083 1,384,849
Amount due to
a Director 194,022 194,022 - 194,022
2,340,112 1,867,988 517,083 2,385,071
Company
2022
Financial liabilities:
Other payables 296,619 296,619 - 206,619
2021
Financial liabilities:
Amounts due fo
subsidiaries 1,066,852 1,056,852 - 1,056,852
Amount due to
a Director 194,022 194,022 - 194,022
Other payables 81,244 81,244 - 81,244
1,332,118 1,332,118 - 1,332,118
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29,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Financial risks management objectives and policies (cont'd)

(iv)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group and the Company are exposed to foreign currency risk on transaction and
balances that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
Group and of the Company. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Indonesia
Rupiah {"IDR”} and United States Dollar (“USD™).

Foreign exchange exposures in transactional currencies other than functional currency of
the Group and of the Company are kept to an acceptable level,

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group’s and the Company’s significant exposure to foreign currency (a currency which
is other than functional currency of the Group and of the Company) risk, based on carrying
amounts as at end of the reporting period was:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM

IDR
- Trade receivables 264,163 1,051,228 - -
- Amount from a subsidiary - - 444,000 -
- Amount due to a

subsidiary - - - (214,945)
- Amount due to a Director - (194,022) - (194,022)
usD
- Trade receivables 661,200 607,948 - “

- Cash and bark balances 1,421,461 - - -

2,346,824 1,465,154 444,000 (408,967)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's and of the Company's
results after tax and equity to a reasonably possible change in these foreign currencies
exchange rates against RM, with all other variables held constant:

Group Company
[ncrease/{Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
in results after tax/ in results after tax/
equity equity
2022 2021 2022 2021
RM RM RM RM
IDR/RM
- Strengthened by 5% 10,038 32,574 16,872 {15,541)
- Weakened hy 5% (10,038) (32,574) (16,872) 15,541
USD/RM
- Strengthened by 5% 79,141 23,102 - -
- Weakened by 5% {79,141) (23,102) - -

65



Registration No.: 202001042085 (1398406-X)

30.

31.

FAIR VALUES INFORMATION
Financial instruments other than those carried at fair value

Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation of fair values

The carrying amounts of short-term receivables and payables, cash and cash eguivalents
approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term nature of these financial instruments
and insignificant impact of discounting.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy
capital ratio in order to support its business and maximise shareholder's value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic and business conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the financial years ended
30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt includes lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents whilst total capital is the equity
attributable to the Owners of the Company.

The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, which are within the Group's objective of
capital management are as follows:

Group
2022 2021
RM RM
Lease liabilities 502,207 1,339,890
Less:
- Fixed deposits placed with licensed banks 3,626,387 2,565,839
- Cash and bank balances 14,688,311 1,579,552
18,314,698 4,145,391
Net cash (17,812,491) {2,805,501)
Equity attributable to the Owners of the Company,
representing total capital 19,397,728 5,820,136
Gearing ratio * *
* Not applicable

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the financial year.

The Group and the Company are not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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32.

RESTRUCTURING EXERCISE

In conjunction with, and as an integral part of the listing of the Company’s shares on the LEAP
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Company has undertaken the following
restructuring exercise:

(a)

(b)

(c}

On 27 January 2021, the Company acquired 100% equity interest in DSB for a
consideration of RM4,443,708 by way of issuance of 51,253,844 new ordinary shares at
an issue price of RM0.0867 per share. Upon the acquisition, DSB became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The acquisition was completed on 3 February 2021,

On 29 January 2021, the Company acquired 90% equity interest in PTDSI for a
consideration of RM758,292 by way of issuance of 8,746,154 new ordinary shares at an
issue price of RM0.0867 per share. Upon the acquisition, PTDS! became a subsidiary of
the Company. The acquisition was completed on 25 February 2021.

On 22 December 2020, the Directors of DSB declared and approved an interim single-tier
dividend of RMZ2.95 per ordinary share for the financial year ended 30 June 2021 amounted
to RM3,051,182, which was paid on 22 December 2020.

For the purpose of accounting for the restructuring exercise, the Group has applied book value
accounting on the basis that the restructuring exercise does not constitute a business
combination to which acquisition accounting can be applied.

Under the book value accounting, the difference between cost of investment recorded by the
Company and the share capitals of DSB and PTDSI respectively is accounted for as restructuring
reserve.

The restructuring reserve is shown as follows:

Number of

new shares

New shares issued by the Company as consideration Unit RM
for the acquisition of subsidiaries:

- DSB 51,253,844 4,443,708
- PTDSIY 8,746,154 1,314,000
Total investment in subsidiaries {Note 11) 59,090,008 5,757,708
Less: Reversal of invested equity
- DSB (1,034,299)
- PTDSI® (2,628,000)
Total invested equity (3,662,299)
Adjustment on capital reduction:
- PTDSI (Note 17) 1,314,000
Restructuring reserve 3,409,409

(1}

(2}

Represented by consideration of RM758,292 from restructuring exercise as disclosed in
{b) and RM555,708 assumed by the Company arising from unpaid share capital due from
a Director cum shareholder in PTDSI (*Assumption of debt”), representing additional
investment into PTDS! by the Company.

Represented by 80% of share capital of RM2,920,000 in PTDSI.
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33. DIVIDEND
On 23 August 2022, the Directors declared and approved an interim single-tier dividend of
RM0.012 per ordinary share for the financial year ending 30 June 2023 amounted to
RIM1,296,000, which was paid by the Company on 9@ September 2022.

The Directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the current financial year.
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